
City of Florence Planning Commission Minutes Page 1 of 5 

June 13, 2017 

 CITY OF FLORENCE PLANNING COMMISSION 

June 13, 2017 ** MEETING MINUTES ** 

CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairperson John Murphey called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. Roll call:  Chairperson John Murphey, Commissioner Clarence 

Lysdale, Commissioner Sandi Young, Commissioner Brian Jagoe, Commissioner Michael Titmus were present.  Vice Chairperson 

Bare and Commissioner Ron Miller were absent and excused.  Also present:  Planning Director Wendy FarleyCampbell, Associate 

Planner Glen Southerland and Admin Assistant Vevie McPherren.   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Commissioner Young motioned to approve the agenda.     Commissioner Jagoe seconded.  By voice, all ayes.  Motion passed 5-0. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Commissioner Titmus motioned to approve the Minutes of May 23, 2017.   Commissioner Young seconded.  By voice, all ayes.  The 

motion passed 5-0. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Planning Commission’s attention any items NOT otherwise listed 

on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three minutes per person, with a maximum time of 15 minutes for all items. 

There were no public comments. 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Chairperson Murphey announced there were three public hearings before the Planning Commission that evening.  The hearing would be held in accordance with the 

land use procedures required by the City in Florence City Code Title 2 Chapter 10 and the State of Oregon.  Prior to the hearing(s) tonight, staff will identify the 

applicable substantive criteria which have also been listed in the staff report.  These are the criteria the Planning Commission must use in making its decision.  All 
testimony and evidence must be directed toward these criteria or other criteria in the Plan or Land Use Regulations which you believe applies to the decision per ORS 

197.763 (5).  Failure to raise an issue accompanied by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the Planning Commission and parties involved an opportunity to 

respond to the issue may preclude an appeal of this decision based on that issue.  Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing, any participant may request 
an opportunity to present additional evidence, arguments or testimony regarding the application. Failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating 

to proposed conditions of approval without sufficient specificity to allow the Planning Commission to respond to the issue that precludes an action for damages in 

circuit court.  Any proponent, opponent, or other party interested in a land use matter to be heard by the Planning Commission may challenge the qualifications of any 
Commissioner to participate in such hearing and decision.  Such challenge must state facts relied upon by the party relating to a Commissioner’s bias, prejudgment, 

personal interest, or other facts from which the party has concluded that the Commissioner will not make a decision in an impartial manner. 

RESOLUTION AR 17 02 MOD 01 – 76 Station Exterior Modification: Continued from May 9, 2017, an application from Dave 

Reed of Wayward R Studio, on behalf of Josh LaFranchi of Ron’s Oil for an approval of a modification to Resolution PC 16 07 CUP 

01. This is a request to change the original elevations for the new convenience store to include a revised roof construction and building

color selection.  The property is located at 1544 Highway 101, Map #18-12-26-23, Tax Lots 00400 & 00402 in the Commercial

Zoning District, regulated by Florence City Code Title 10, Chapter 15.

Chairperson Murphey asked if any of the Planning Commissioners wished to declare any conflicts of interest, ex parte contacts, site 

visits, or bias.  There were no challenges.  Chairperson Murphey opened the public hearing at 7:08 p.m.   

AP Southerland presented the continued staff report (attached).  He reported that Staff had consulted legal counsel and received 

guidance from the City Attorney.  AP Southerland stated that the application for modification pertained only to the store building (not 

site, not canopy, not landscaping).  Staff stated the application met the applicable criteria of City Code and Florence Realization 2020 

Comprehensive Plan and recommended approval of the application with the conditions of approval stated at the previous Planning 

Commission hearing.  Chairperson Murphey asked for clarification regarding the approved building color and AP Southerland stated 

that the recommended color was the proposed light gray body, white trim and blue roof that was included in Exhibit D and Condition 

#4.  Commissioner Lysdale asked for clarification of the code change and how it applied and AP Southerland explained how the 

construction of the building did not meet however, was in a gray area of the current code.  Commissioner Titmus expressed concern 

over the applicant’s disregard of the original approval.  There was discussion regarding the old and the current code and how it 

pertained to the requested modification. 

Applicant’s Representative, David Reed, Wayward R Studio 

Mr. Reed stated that he did not have a presentation but was prepared to answer questions.  There were no questions. Chairperson 

Murphey asked the applicant if he understood and agreed with the findings and he replied that he did. 

Chairperson Murphey asked if there were any proponents, opponents, or neutral parties.  There were none.  AP Southerland stated that 

Staff recommended approval of the application with the conditions of approval previously stated. 

Chairperson Murphey closed the public hearing at 7:19 p.m. 



 

City of Florence Planning Commission Minutes  Page 2 of 5 

June 13, 2017 
 

Commissioner Titmus motioned to approve Resolution AR 17 02 MOD 01 – 76 Station Exterior Modification request for approval to 

the modifications of the original approval.    Commissioner Lysdale seconded.   
 

 

By roll call vote: Commissioner Jagoe, “No”; Commissioner Titmus, “Yes”; Chairperson Murphey, “Yes”; Commissioner Young, 

“Yes”; Commissioner Lysdale, “Yes”.  Commissioner Miller and Vice Chairperson Bare were absent and excused.  The motion 

passed 4 to 1. 
 

 

RESOLUTION PC 17 11 CUP 06 – Helping Hands Coalition: An application from Debe Hamilton on behalf of Helping 

Hands Coalition for a Conditional Use Permit, seeking temporary approval to convert a building, currently retail, to 

multipurpose human services also serving free meals three days a week.  Proposed location is at 1790 Highway 101, Map #18-

12-26-22 Tax Lot 07500 within the Commercial District, regulated by FCC Title 10 Chapter 15.  
 

Chairperson Murphey asked if any of the Planning Commissioners wished to declare any conflicts of interest, ex parte contacts, site 

visits, or bias.  Commissioner Lysdale stated he had made a site visit.  There were no challenges to Commissioner impartiality.  

Chairperson Murphey opened the public hearing at 7:21 p.m.   
 

PD FarleyCampbell presented the staff report (attached).  She began and gave a brief introduction that included an overview of the 

proposal and the timeline and stated the applicable criteria.  PD FarleyCampbell explained the submitted plans and discussed the 

challenges of the parking plan.  She pointed out that most of the opposing testimony had been received from property owners who, if 

under current code, would require a conditional use permit to be in their respective zone, just as the applicant was now requesting 

approval for.  She continued and provided information regarding referral comments that included a departmental fact file report from 

the Florence Police Department regarding the applicant’s organization.  She stated that if approved, the application would be a 

temporary approval for a two-year period.  PD FarleyCampbell stated that staff found the application met the applicable criteria of 

City Code and recommended approval of the application with the outlined changes to the following conditions:  Condition #3.1 

regarding the removal of the required 5 parking spaces to allow 3 parking spaces, Condition #3.2 regarding the revision of the ADA 

parking space to state that the applicant would “meet it as best they could” with as many criteria as possible.  Condition #3.3 and #3.4 

regarding the return of the applicant to request a permanent conditional use permit after the temporary period, a 50 foot of driveway 

and stormwater would be required to new parking.  Condition #4.5 regarding the suggestion of “No overnight parking” be added to the 

proposed signage and the revision of Condition #6.2 regarding the addition of the planting of 14 shrubs.  PD FarleyCampbell 

concluded and presented the alternatives and asked for questions.   

 

Commissioner Young asked for clarification regarding the exact area of the site that the applicant would have access to.  She also 

asked for clarification regarding the traffic flow.  PD FarleyCampbell indicated that the site plan was more a survey and after speaking 

to the property owner it was still unclear.  She said that she thought the applicant’s intention was that they would have access along 

the east between the coffee shop, probably at least five feet or so because they were not showing any vehicular movement to the east 

however, that was where the volunteers would need to park.  She continued and said that the site plan imagery that the applicant 

provided indicated it would be where the grass area was to the east, along the eastern side of the building, the parking area to the west 

and the building itself.  She added that a more realistic version would be to draw a line down the middle however, the neighboring 

drive-through coffee shop used the northeast end of the site for customers to access on to 18th Street.  PD FarleyCampbell then 

explained the proposed traffic flow would be to enter from the western most 18th Street entrance and exit back on to Highway 101 and 

that it would be a shared exit with the drive-through coffee shop.  She indicated that it was a challenge because it was a pre-existing 

site.  Once the barricade and pedestrian access were up they would need 30 feet in between the building and the drive-through coffee 

shop.   

 

Commissioner Jagoe noted that the new parking plan showed the only existing shrub would be removed to install the fencing, asked 

where the required landscaping would be and questioned the site availability to ensure the requirement could be met.  He continued 

and questioned the parking and emergency accessibility regarding the limited space from the bollard to the back of a vehicle.  PD 

FarleyCampbell stated that the area was too narrow and would not accommodate a parking space.  Commissioner Jagoe asked if that 

would bring the parking spaces down to two and limit the required landscaping to be planted along Highway 101 where the parking 

was planned.  PD FarleyCampbell explained that the landscaping plan was unclear because the proposed fence plan had been modified 

from the original submitted but, some of the landscaping could be planted in the City Right-Of-Way along 18th Street and count.  She 

added that the shrubbery could be planted anywhere on the property and suggested that some may be needed to screen the residence to 

the east to discourage an otherwise attractive nuisance of walking through.  Commissioner Jagoe questioned the possible parking on 

the east side and PD FarleyCampbell indicated that because of the limited parking on the west side of the building it would probably 

also be used by the volunteers.  Commissioner Jagoe also asked if the modified fencing would be secured area and PD FarleCampbell 

stated that she did not know however, thought that it would be open and available.  He concluded and asked how many clients would 

be inside in the dining area and what kind of seating arrangement had been submitted and PD FarleyCampbell replied that a seating 

arrangement had not been proposed.     

 



 

City of Florence Planning Commission Minutes  Page 3 of 5 

June 13, 2017 
 

Commissioner Titmus requested clarification regarding the trash receptacles and PD FarleyCampbell stated that it was a condition of 

approval that the trash would be stored inside or behind a fenced area.  Commissioner Titmus requested clarification regarding 

whether the police report represented calls that simply came in to report or if they had been calls that required Police follow-up and 

PD FarleyCampbell stated that they represented calls for assist and in most cases no citation was issued.  She added that the City Code 

Enforcement Officer stated most of the reports he had been called out to had been dog related.  Commissioner Titmus also asked if the 

bicycle and the standard parking spaces would be adequate considering the 50 plus clients served during the proposed limited hours at 

that location and expressed his concerns that included circulation and safety.   

 

Chairperson Murphey also voiced his concerns regarding the proposed modified parking plan and how it measured up to past more 

stringent parking requirements and approvals.  PD FarleyCampbell pointed out that the Code allowed the opportunity for Planning 

Commission to make a different decision on the number of parking spaces if a parking analysis was provided.  She continued and 

stated that was what the applicant had submitted (Exhibit E) and added that a parking plan could not be waived.  Chairperson 

Murphey asked if that also applied to the 50-foot paved apron and PD FarleyCampbell replied that it was in the same section of Code.   

 

Commissioner Lysdale asked if the applicant was required to show the exact location of the area they would be authorized to use, and 

noted that there could be potential conflicts without the exact area established.  PD FarleyCampbell stated that the property owner did 

not state the exact area that the applicant would be authorized to use and said that providing a revised site plan with the designated 

information could be added as a condition of approval.  Commissioner Jagoe asked about Code regarding proposed smoking areas and 

PD FarleyCampbell stated that smoking could be allowed on the northern end of the fence line but, the Commissioners could require 

that the applicant specify a designated smoking area.    
 

Applicant – Rick Hamilton, Helping Hands Coalition 

Mr. Hamilton pointed out where the designated smoking area would be and suggested that the fence at the waiting area could be 

moved to accommodate a more desirable area.  He continued and stated that there was additional room along the east side of the 

building and along 18th Street for a possible volunteer parking area.  Mr. Hamilton explained that the traffic flow on the south side of 

the building from the coffee shop drive-through should not be obstructed, addressed the proposed planting of shrubbery and stated that 

there was room to create a buffer between the coffee shop drive-through on the south side of the applicant’s building.  

 

Chairperson Murphey requested clarification of the location of the fence and the edge of the building and Mr. Hamilton detailed the 

15-foot setback and said that the fence location could be modified.  Commissioner Lysdale asked for a definition and description of 

the fence and Mr. Hamilton stated that it would be a 6-foot privacy fence made out of wood.  Commissioner Jagoe questioned the 

adequacy for the waiting and smoking area within the 5-foot fenced area and Mr. Hamilton replied that the landing area was near the 

storage area and nowhere near the kitchen area.  Commissioner Jagoe asked what the dimensions were and how many seats were 

available in the dining area.  Mr. Hamilton said that 20 to 25 clients would be seated with an approximate 20-minute turnover, he 

could not provide the exact dimensions of the dining area.  He did indicate there was enough room to place four 8-top tables in the 

dining area with room for ADA accessibility however, they were only proposing to place three tables in the dining area.   

 

Commissioner Titmus questioned the 30-foot code requirement between the drive-through coffee shop and the applicant’s proposed 

facility and PD FarleyCampbell explained the requirements from different codes that addressed travel lanes, pedestrian way and 

building separation and there was brief discussion of directional access at the coffee shop drive-through.  Commissioner Young 

restated the need for determination of property use and separation between the coffee shop drive-through and the applicant’s proposed 

facility.  Mr. Hamilton stated that the property owner would have a better clarification, currently there was no determination of exact 

property use and it was proposed to be a shared and workable plan.  Commissioner Young asked if they had been in communication 

with the owner of the coffee shop regarding the shared plan and Mr. Hamilton said he understood that the owner of the coffee shop 

had concerns regarding this arrangement however, they were trying to do whatever possible to come to a workable arrangement.  

Commissioner Young noted the other services the applicant provided and asked if they proposed to provide those services at the same 

location and during the same hours and Mr. Hamilton replied yes.  Commissioner Titmus inquired about the location of the nearest 

lighted cross walk and Mr. Hamilton replied that it was located in front of the Roby’s furniture store one block north.  Commissioner 

Titmus also asked if most of the clients served were homeless or working but in need of a meal and Mr. Hamilton said they were both.  

Commissioner Jagoe pointed out there had been concerns received of possible camping and asked if the fence would be locked at 

night.  Mr. Hamilton stated the fenced area would be a waiting area, there would be no overnight camping or loitering.  He explained 

the fenced area would not have a locked gate but that the property would have a 24-hour surveillance camera available to them.  

Commissioner Jagoe asked the applicant to define the difference between loitering and waiting and Mr. Hamilton stated that from 

11:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. was considered waiting and anything before 11:30 a.m. or after 1:00 p.m. was considered loitering.  

Commissioner Jagoe asked why the gates would not be locked and Mr. Hamilton responded there was no need to lock the gates and 

felt that having unlocked gates would assist the Police on nightly patrol.  He continued and clarified that there would be no gates, 

Commissioner Jagoe pointed out that was not what had been submitted or proposed and Mr. Hamilton explained it had been submitted 

as part of a late modification the applicant wanted to present to the Commissioners at a later date.  Commissioner Lysdale asked how 

many clients arrived with dogs and what kind of arrangement was in place for the dogs that arrived with the clients.  He suggested that 

providing a kennel might be something to be considered.  Mr. Hamilton responded there were 3 or 4 dogs that arrived a day, they were 



 

City of Florence Planning Commission Minutes  Page 4 of 5 

June 13, 2017 
 

not allowed inside the dining area and only allowed at the fenced in waiting area.  Mr. Hamilton responded there was no need for a 

dog kennel.   

 

There were no further questions for the applicant.  Chairperson Murphey asked Mr. Hamilton if he had read the staff report and 

understood the conditions of approval as proposed and he replied yes. 

 

Proponent, Maggie Bagon 

Ms. Bagon stated that she was a retired social worker and she had observed that when the less fortunate were provided with services 

and a place to feel safe and eat and gather there was less incidents of crime and the area became safer.  She added that she felt the 

police report did not provide significant numbers.    

 

Neutral Party, Kelly Kawahara 

Ms. Kawahara stated that the back of her property abutted a secluded alleyway that ran east and west from the coffee shop to Spruce 

Street.  She expressed safety concerns regarding increased foot traffic, garbage, and loitering and asked what kind of plans were in 

place to prevent potential problems.   

 

Proponent, Reverend Carol Thompson, Pastor of United Methodist Church 

Ms. Thompson stated that Helping Hands Coalition had been a part of the congregation’s ministry since August 2016.  She reported 

there had been one police call during that time that involved an individual that had also been to their worship.  She continued and 

stated that she lived next door to the church and no concerns regarding loitering, garbage, theft or damage.  Ms. Thompson concluded 

and stated that she did not believe property values had been negatively impacted for proposed new business and that Helping Hands 

Coalition had been good neighbors. 

 

Proponent, Linda Castro, Florence Resident 

Ms. Castro stated that she supported homeless shelters in the past and expressed her gratitude to Helping Hands for their ongoing 

efforts to feed the hungry and help those in need. 

 

Opponent, Debra Dee Osborne, Florence Resident 

Ms. Osborne said that she represented herself and three other residents, Kristi Robinson, Lonie Wright, and Judy Wright. She stated 

she served on many boards and attended many functions to raise money to support Helping Hands.   However, she was against the 

location.  Ms. Osborne continued and reported there is a vacant lot adjacent to the automotive store to the north of her property.  The 

lot has been a problem with homeless camping.  She stated that individuals walk through the brush, past her “No Trespassing” signage 

and through her back yard and she expressed safety concerns of allowing her child to play in her back yard.  She also pointed out that 

the proposed surveillance camera would only provide coverage specifically at the facility.  She added that she was concerned that her 

child, along with other children in the neighborhood who would be taking a bus for a summer school program and that bus was 

scheduled to pick up and drop off on 18th Street directly across the street from the proposed facility.  She added that she had a concern 

knowing that the children would be getting off the bus at 12:00 noon when the proposed facility would be fully occupied.  Ms. 

Osborne concluded and stated that the residential neighborhood was heavily congregated with children who rode bikes and traveled 

around and behind the coffee shop to go to the A&W.  She agreed that there were not a significant number of police calls however, the 

content of the calls made were her real concern.  

 

Applicant, Debe Hamilton, Co-Founder, Helping Hands Coalition 

Ms. Hamilton noted that several of the reported police calls had been made on days that the kitchen was not open.  She continued and 

noted that children are among the clients that are served and pointed out that any location of Helping Hands Coalition could not be 

responsible for existing area wide homeless camping.  Ms. Hamilton said that the organization was open and willing to consider any 

suggestions of a more desirable location.  However, after a long search for a location the proposed property and property owner had 

finally been an agreeable arrangement.  Ms. Hamilton clarified that the property owner had indicated the allowed use covered the 

entire area straight back to the east of the building.  She concluded and said that “99.9% of our people are well behaved humans that 

just want to feel a bit human for an hour and a half, three times a week.  That’s all.”     

 

Opponent, Alexandra Selig, Florence Resident 

Ms. Selig expressed that she supported Helping Hands however, was against the location.  She said that she had two small children, 

agreed with Ms. Osborne’s testimony and stated further concerns regarding the influx of pedestrian and vehicular traffic.  She 

continued and pointed out concerns for her children’s safety and the safety of others without existing sidewalks and increased traffic 

flow.  Ms. Selig stated that her property also abutted to the alley and she is concerned about increased foot traffic, garbage, and 

trespassing.   Ms. Selig concluded and stated that she had wanted to learn more about services the organization provided and made 

some online research.  In Ms. Selig’s inquires she said that she noted the Helping Hands Coalition had already posted the proposed 

Highway 101 address as their new address on their website.  She questioned the Planning Commissioners and asked if there had 

already been a decision made or if the applicant was possibly “jumping the gun.”    

 



 

City of Florence Planning Commission Minutes  Page 5 of 5 

June 13, 2017 
 

Proponent, Amy Hamilton, Florence Resident 

Ms. Hamilton stated that she was a volunteer, had two children of her own and had no concerns regarding safety or trust.  Ms. 

Hamilton continued and said that she had been homeless, understood firsthand the importance of an organization like Helping Hands 

and shared her personal experience of how a similar organization had positively impacted her life.  She concluded and shared her 

interaction and concerns and the needs of the clients who are currently served.    

 

Proponent, Lois Bass, Helping Hands Board Chairperson 

Ms. Bass stated that Helping Hands had been in existence for over six years and had been looking for a location for many months.  

She continued and said that they were working with the Planning Department to meet every requirement.  Ms. Bass explained Helping 

Hand’s intentions, how they served the community and expressed the importance of the organization within the community.  She 

presented the support of other non-profit organizations within the community and pointed out their own ongoing efforts to maintain a 

low-impact presence within the community.  She stated that “Oregon was number one in child hunger and Oregon was number three 

in families who did not know where their next meal was coming from.”  Ms. Bass concluded and expressed her concerns regarding the 

ability to continue serving the community if the proposed location is not approved.    

 

Proponent, Dean Lundy, Florence Resident 

Mr. Lundy stated that he was a new resident to the City, he had research a number of property sites and felt the site was a perfect 

location and more than adequate to serve the community.  He concluded and expressed his opinion regarding the responsibility of 

taking care of those in need and “bringing them out into the open.”     

 

There were no further testimonies, no further questions and no rebuttal from the applicant other than the written (Exhibit E).   

 

PD FarleyCampbell addressed Mr. Hamilton’s comments on the revised site plan regarding the proposed move of the fence and gravel 

walk way and she stated that the walk way would need to be of a hard surface.  She continued and addressed Mr. Hamilton’s 

comments regarding the proposed use of the 18th Street area with gravel for volunteer parking and stated that the Public Works 

Director, Mike Miller had not commented on approval of anything in the 18th Street right-of-way.  PD FarleyCampbell clarified that 

the state law regarding smoking was that it was prohibited within 10 feet of any building entrance and suggested that staff would add a 

condition in the approval for signage to be established to declare the designated smoking area.  She also clarified for the record that 

ADA was not limited to wheel chair services.  She stated that she wanted the applicant to provide a very clear site plan of the 

volunteer parking on the property.  PD FarleyCampbell said that the police may want to be aware of any gate or no gate modification 

and she recommended a specific dog tie-off area at the site if no dog kennel was provided.  She addressed the concerns regarding 

garbage and suggested that the applicant propose a more defined plan.  She concluded and stated that staff recommended a 

continuance to a date certain of June 27, 2017 with the record left open for written testimony.   
 

Chairperson Murphey closed the public hearing at 9:10 p.m.  

 

There was Commission Deliberation that included the request of a statement from the property owner regarding the exact use of the 

property and more detailed information regarding the activities in the alley and the vacant lot.  There was discussion regarding 

consideration for the existing coffee shop business owner and fire, life, and safety regarding circulation and parking.  There was 

discussion regarding the intent of permitted uses in the Commercial zone.  Chairperson Murphey stated he would like to have trash 

enclosure and removal plan included to the conditions of approval.   
 

Commissioner Jagoe motioned to continue Resolution PC 17 11 CUP 06 – Helping Hands Coalition to a date certain of June 27, 2017 

and leave the record open for written testimony.  Commissioner Young seconded.   
 

By voice all Ayes.  The motion passed 5 to 0. 

 

Chairperson Murphey called for a recess at 9:13 p.m. 

 

[The remainder of the minutes will be available for review and approval at a future Planning Commission meeting] 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 











vevie.mcpherren
Text Box
Exhibit C1



1

Wendy Farley-Campbell 

From: Martin E. Millard <martinemillard@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 12, 2017 1:33 PM 
To: Wendy Farley-Campbell 
Subject: Re: Helping Hands - Exhibit K - Police Referral Comments 

Ms. Farley‐Campball, 

Thank you for keeping me in the loop. It looks like the police dept provided evidence backing my concerns. 
Allowing a Helping Hands Coalition on Hwy 101 next to 17th st will create an influx of crime such as illegal 
camping in the alley next to this location, break‐ins of homes bordering this location, loitering, drug use, 
etc. It will reduce the home values in the immediate area and hurt any attempts towards improvement of 
the city of Florence overall. 

Martin 
541‐579‐9919 

vevie.mcpherren
Text Box
Exhibit F1



vevie.mcpherren
Text Box
Exhibit K





vevie.mcpherren
Text Box
Exhibit L








